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[7. DESCRIPTION

{Check One)
[ Excellent X] Good ] Fair [T] Deteriorated ] Ruins [ Unexposed

CONDITION (Check One) {Check One)

X Aitered {3 Unaltered ’ [J Moved &) Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if knawn) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. John's stands in a churchyard denizened by gnarled cedars,
sycamores and boxwood above a pond formed by Cedar Creek on the north
side of Route 125, a little more than a wmile east of the village of
Chuckatuck, The building is not oriented east-west as are most colonial
churches; instead its chancel is oriented to the northeast. The
brick building measures 60'10" x 30'6" on the outside, and has 27"
thick walls, Although it originally had clipped gables, the building
is now covered by a steeply pitched gable roof with simple box cornice.
The apex of both - the present gables is filled in with a light colored
brick, The walls are laid in Flemigh bond with glazed headers above
and below the bevelled water table, although the glazxng is more

. regular on the west wall, Rubbed brick suggest quoins at the corners
and mark all original jambs, arches and the pilasters at the west
doorway, Queen closers are employed at the corners and occur irregue-
larly at the openings of windows and doors. Markéd brick include
those incised "AH-17" and "EH~53" high on the southeast wall, repre=-
senting Anthony and Esther Holladay who gave the land for the church,
as well as thoge incised "AG"™ and "CH", also on the southeast wall,
There are four large windows with rounded arches in both the northwest
and southeast walls, and one smaller window in the northeast: end.

A small circular window high in the southwest gable has been filled
in with cement, ZThe two original windows in the chancel have been
bricked up, and a window replaces the southeast doorway, The molded
brick pediment which surely adorned the southwest doorwuy is missing,
although the pilasters remain in place.

The interior of the church was replaced in 1888 with wood
panelling by William Whitney, The raised and panelled chancel in the
northeast is framed by a lancet arch and is flanked by two dressing
rooms entered by doors in the sides of the chancel, . *he walls are,
completely panelled’ in dzagonal tongue-and-groove panelling. The
three-plane ceiling is panelled in tongue-and-groove board arranged .
in a herringbone pattern. The roof trueses are believed to be
original. The gallery in the southwest end dates from about 1870,
The colonial 18" square pink-brown sandstone flagstones remain in
.the nave, although the flooring underneath has been replaced.

G. H.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Nansemond County was formed in 1636 as New Norfolk County
and received its present name, an Indian ubrd meanzng "fishing point
or angle", in 1645, In 1642/3 the county was divided into three
separate Parishes: the West Parish was known as Chuckatuck and the
East Parish as Lower Parish, These two were united to form Suffolk
Parish is 1725, Chuckatuck Church,originally the parish church of
Chuckatuck and later 'was . incorporated into Suffolk Parish, is

stood just beyond the entrance to the present chureh, The second
church stood to the southeast of the present church, completed in
1755, After deciding in 1751 to replace the building, the vestry
advertized in the Virginia Gazette, April 24, 1752, "To be LET the
Building of a new Brick Church in Suffolk Parxsh near the old one
in Chuckatuck,...". After the vestry accepted the new building, it
ordered the warden "to advertize the Pulling down of the 014 Chutch
and Clearing the Yard." L - L

Chuckatuck Church was abandoned after.the Revolution and.
the resultlng Dzsestablxshment, but it was repaired and returmned
to service in 1826. In 1828, in accordance with the popular Cuse _
tom of renaming colonial churches after saints, the church was
dedicated to St, John. It is said thatFederal Troops used the .
church as a stable during the War Between the States, After the
War the building was once more restored to use. The present
interior appearance is thought to derive largely from the reno=
vations carried out by William Whitney in 1888.

With its beautiful glazed header Flemish bond brickwork,
St. John's Church is an important example of the rectilinear form
of Virginia's colonial ecclesiastical architecture, and is unusual
because it does not have the normal east-west orientation, St,
John's is remembered as the church whose vestry challenged Gov,
Francis Nicholson's claim to the authorzty of induction of ministers
and the supply of vacancies,

G."H,

the third church at this site. The first church, built Circa,.]l643, _
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